City of Lake Forest Park - Planning Commission
Regular Meeting Notes: June 14, 2016
17425 Ballinger Way NE—Forest Room

Planning Commissioners present: Chair Jon Lebo; Vice Chair Semra Riddle; Richard Saunders; Joel Paisner, Connie Holloway; Ray Holmdahl; Doug Gochanour (at 8pm)
Staff and others present: Ande Flower, Principal Planner; Jake Tracy, Assistant Planner; Mike Dee, resident
 Planning Commissioners absent: none.

Call to order: 7:00PM

Approval of Meeting Agenda: 
Cmr. Paisner  moved to approve the meeting agenda. The motion was seconded by Cmr. Riddle and passed unanimously. 

Approval of Meeting Notes:
May 10, 2016 
Cmr. Saunders stated that the minutes should reflect that the commissioners asked staff to come back with recommendations regarding residents’ requirements for meeting the canopy coverage goal. Cmr. Riddle seconded the addition of this amendment. Cmr. Riddle moved to approve the minutes as amended. The motion was seconded by Cmr.  Paisner and passed unanimously.

Public Comment
Mike Dee: He stated that he is glad to see that City Council approved the new permit tracking software, and that he thinks it will be good for citizens to find out what is being permitted in the City. He is also happy to see that tree and code enforcement ordinance updates are in progress.

Old Business:
Tree Regulations Update: LFPMC 16.14 and 16.16

Notice and Appeals
Cmr. Lebo asked for clarification on why the permit notice is to be posted for seven days after removal. Principal Planner Ande Flower explained that residents often do not see the notice but see that the tree is gone afterwards. She further explained that having the permit posted after removal allows residents to discover that the removal was permitted without having to contact the City.

Cmr. Riddle advocated for clarifying posting requirements through streamlining of language. The commissioners agreed that there should be one section to describe the notice of application process and another section to describe the notice of decision process. They also agreed that permits not requiring arborist review should have a two-business-day posting, so that there is time for public comments to be reviewed by staff. There was also discussion of whether notice of application should be posted until the tree is removed, or at least until the permit is issued. Assistant Planner Jake Tracy noted that, because permitees will have a year after issuance to remove the tree, requiring a notice to be posted for the entire time until removal might be too much. Ande Flower added that the postings often fade and are unreadable after several months. After discussion, the commissioners agreed that the posting periods should be described as “minimum” posting periods and that the notice of application should be posted at least through permit decision. Cmr. Lebo stated that this language should also be included on the posting itself, and the other commissioners agreed. 




Multi-Stemmed Trees
Jake Tracy explained that the new definitions for Significant Tree and Landmark Tree are intended to distinguish when multi-stemmed trees fall into either category. The commissioners agreed to these changes but requested that the word “live” be removed from the definitions. 

Five-Year Forest Management Plan
The commissioners next discussed the Five Year Forest Management Plan. Cmr. Paisner raised a concern about the process for amending the permit during the course of the five years. Jake Tracy explained that the proposed language makes the permit subject to annual review and changes can be made when approved by the City Arborist. Cmr. Lebo asked how permit timelines would work – if the permitee could remove all of the trees within the first year and re-plant five years later. Jake Tracy answered that a timeline for removal and replacement is required by the proposed regulations, and this timeline would have to be approved by the City Arborist as well. 

Commissioner Saunders stated that he would like to see a different title besides “Five-Year Forest Management Plan” but no alternatives were agreed upon. 

Cmr. Riddle asked what would happen if a person moved halfway through this five-year permit. Ande Flower clarified that the plan would follow the property, so the new buyer would be responsible for carrying out (or amending) the five year plan. 
 
Invasive Trees
Jake Tracy introduced the permit exception for invasive trees. Cmr. Riddle asked if this should really be an exception from permit requirements or just a non-arborist-involved permit. Ande Flower explained that the exception streamlines the process and encourages removal of invasive species, and that requiring a permit would make the process more burdensome. Much discussion ensued on this topic. Cmr. Holloway and Cmr. Riddle were concerned that an exception would be too confusing for applicants and that a permit would be easier. Cmr. Paisner stated his belief that an exception would be less confusing. After discussion, the commissioners agreed that an exception was acceptable, but that it should require an application and that a request for this option should be integrated into the regular tree permit application. They also agreed that a notice of exception should be posted on-site. 

The commissioners reviewed the King County List of Noxious Weeds. They agreed that the entire list should be included for the exception, including both the regulated and non-regulated noxious weed lists (Class A, B, and C). 

Utility Exception
Ande Flower introduced the exception for utilities, which was changed from an exemption in the existing code. The commissioners were satisfied with the language in the proposed right-of-way exception, but noted that similar language regarding topping should be included on right-of-way permit applications and permits. Since utilities are exempt from the tree permit process, the franchise agreement instead requires a right-of-way permit.

Tree Tract
Jake Tracy discussed the new tree tract requirements. He raised the question of whether to retain the existing language stating that tree tract canopy coverage should be achieved in 15 years, or to change this requirement to 30 years as with other replacement requirements in the chapter. The commissioners agreed that retaining the 15-year target was in line with the Council’s guidance of “when in doubt, favor trees and the canopy.”

Ande Flower suggested adding a performance bond for tree tract trees, and the commissioners asked for draft language to this effect to be added. 

[bookmark: _GoBack]The proposed fee-in-lieu was also discussed. The commissioners debated whether or not a fee-in-lieu should be allowed. Ande Flower suggested that the payment could be based on a valuation of the benefits the fully-treed tract would provide, rather than $300 per 1,000 sqft of canopy coverage like other tree replacement. Cmr. Riddle stated that there should be language stating that a fee-in-lieu can be prorated proportionately if an applicant wishes to provide a tree tract that is less than 5% of the total property area.   

New Business:
The commissioners discussed when their public meeting regarding the tree regulations should take place. They agreed that it would be held on Tuesday, July 26 from 7-9pm in the Council Chambers.

Reports/Communications/Announcements:
Jake Tracy reported that the Council is considering an ordinance enabling the tree board, and that the tree board may be able to help with the Planning Commission’s Public Meeting. 

Next Meetings: July 12, 6-9 p.m. – Update Tree Regulations
	              July 26, 7-9 p.m. – Tree Regulations Public Meeting

Adjournment:  9:00 PM

APPROVED:

______________________
Jon Lebo, Chair


1

